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f Pasco et al

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

BERTHA ARANDA GLATT,

Plaintiff, No. 4:16CV-05108LRS
V.

CITY OF PASCOgt al.,

Defendand.

PARTIAL CONSENT DECREE

PARTIAL CONSENT DECREE

A Complaint has been filed by the above Ri#fi alleging that the currel
atlarge method of electing members of the Pasco City Couintdtes Section
of the Federal Votindright Act by diluting the electoral power of Pasco’s Lat
voters and therebglepriving Latinos of an opportunity tdfully participate in th
political process and to elect candidates of their choitieetBasco City Council.

FACTUAL STIPULATION —LIABILITY

The abovenamed Plaintiff and Defendagtipulateand agreas follows:

Background

1. Defendant City of Pasco, Washington, is a municipal corpor
organized under the laws of the State of Washington as an optmalcity

subject to Chapter 35A of the Revised Code of Washind@efendants Rebec
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Francik Robert Hoffmann, Thomas Larsen, Saul Martinez, Matthew \Waitlang
Al Yenney,are currenmembers of the Pasco City Coundihe City Council ha|
statutory authority to set voting districtsubject to thestate law The City
Councilmembers are each sued in their official capacity only.

2. The Pasco City Council comss of seven (7) City Councilmemb

serving staggered fowear terms.The next municipal election will be |i

November2017, at which time four (4) seats on the Pasco City Council will
for election

3. Five (5) City Councilmembers areurrently nomimated in a nof
partisan top-two primary infive (5) territorial election districtsFor territoria
election districts, only a resident of that voting district may be a candidate
hold office as, a Councilmember of tlastrict, and only voters ahe districtmay,

vote at the primary election to nominate candidates for the City Councilm

for that district. Candidates for the two (2)-&rge City Council positions are

determined at the primary electiona nonpartisan, togwo primary by residnts
of the entire City of Pasco

4. During the general election, voters of the entire @iye to elect 4
Councilmember for each of threspectiveterritorial election districts as well aj
the two atlarge Council positiongi.e., all Councilmembers are elected on at]

large basis
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5.  The City has, within the last legislative session, sought a change
State law to allow for distridbased votingln the absence of a change in the S
law, the City,andin anticipation of the 2015 municipal electioycle, sought t
amend Pasco Municipal Code (PMC) 1.10.010 to provide for dibiamec
elections The Cityrequested that the Franklin County Auditor implement dis
based votingThe Auditor responded to Pasco’s request in a letter dated Ap
2015, claiming that because implementing a disbagted election system wol
violate Wash. Rev. Cod&5A.12.180, the Auditor was unable to conduct
election under Pasco’s proposed disthiased election system.

6. On May 4, 2015, the Pasco City Coursilcted Resolution No. 36
declaring its intent to pursue a distridsed election system for C
Councilmembers, and further declaring its continuing intent to provide
voting opportunities for all of its citizens, and to provide equitable andpropal
representation.

7. At the behest of the City of Pasco, Washington State Senato
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Roach submitted a request to the Washington State Attorney General redaading t

authority of cities subject to RCW 35A.12.180 (which includes the City of P
to change their own election systerftn January 28, 2016, the Washington §
Attorney General rendered an Opinwhich noted that

Thus, RCW 35A.12.180 specifically denies to code cities the authority
to restrict voting by ward at the general electidherefore, a local

ordinance that provided for general elections by ward would conflict
with RCW 35A.12.180 and be preempted by state law. (Attorney
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Rights Act, which provides in part as follows:

Fifteenth Amendment’s guarantee that no citigermghtto vote shall be denied o
abridged . . . on account of race, color, or previous condition of servitude.

Voinovich v. Quilter, 507 U.S. 146, 152 (1993).
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General Opinion at pg. 5.Jn sum, Code cities in Washington that
believe they may be in violation of the VRA face difficult decisions
and potential legal risk regardless of what course they choose.
(Attorney General Opinion at pg. 10).

Violation of Section 2 of the Federal Voting Rights Act

8.  This action is for the enforcement of Section 2 of the Federal ¥ ot

(@) No voting qualification or prerequisite to voting or standard,
practice, or procedure shall be imposed or applied by any State ol
political subdivision in a manner which results in a denial or
abridgenent of the right of any citizen of the United States to vote on
account of race or color, or in contravention of the guarantees set forth
in Section 1973b(f)(2) of this title, as provided in subsection (b) of
this section.

(b) A violation of subsectiona) of this section is established if,
based on the totality of circumstances, it is shown that the political
processes leading to nomination or election in the State or political
subdivision are not equally open to participation by members of a
class of dizens protected by subsection (a) of this section in that its
members have less opportunity than other members of the electorat
to participate in the political process and to elect representatives of
their choice.The extent to which members of a protected class have
been elected to office in the State or political subdivision is one
circumstance which may be considerBdovided, That nothing in this
section establishes a right to have members of a protected clas
elected in numbers equal to their proportion in the population.

9. The Federal Voting Rights Act is designed help effectuate the
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10. A violation of the Voting Rights Act occurs wherased upon the
totality of the circumstances, the challenged electoral procésstiequally open
to participation by members offecial minority groupin that its members have
less opportunity than other members of the electorate to participate in the pg
process and to elect representatives of their clicd@U.S.C. § 1973(b).

11. The City of Pasco is an optional municipal code city subjedtash.
Rev. Code35A.12.180, the pertinent portion of whistatesas follow:

Wards shall be redrawn as provided in chapter@RTCW. Wards

shall be used as followgl) Only a resident of the ward may be a

candidate for, or hold office as, a councilmember ofwhed; and (2)

only voters of the ward may vote at a primary to nominate candidates
for a councilmember of the wardoters of the entire city may vote at

the general election to elect a councilmember of a ward, unless the

city had prior to January 1, 1994mited the voting in the general

election for any or all council positions to only voters residing within

the ward associated with the council positidhs. city had so limited

the voting in the general election to only voters residing within the

ward,then the city shall be authorized to continue to do so.

12. Due to voting trendshe result of the statutorily mandatedae
electionhas beemon-Latino dominance in electing City Council members.
Pasco’s large Latino population is sufficiently numerous and compact to forn

majority inat least onsinglemember districtis political cohesiveand the non

Latino majority votes sufficiently as a block to defea#éino preferred candidate.

See Thornburg v. Gingles, 478 U.S. 30 (1986).
13. As this court hkel in Montes v. Yakima, “state law must sometimes

yield to afford an effective remedy under the Voting Rights Aoeé Supremacy
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Clause requires that state law be abrogated where doing so is necessary to
a violation of the Voting Rights ActMontesv. Yakima, No. 12CV-3108TOR,
Final Injunction and Remedial Districting PJdiCF No. 143Feb. 172015)
(citing Arizona v. Inter Tribal Council of Ariz. Inc., 133 SCt. 2247, 2256 (2013))
“Federal legislation so far as it extends and conflicts with the regulations of t
State, necessarily supersedes thdfr.Parte Sebold, 100 U.S. 371, 384 (1879).
Thus, “[ijn remedial situations under Section 2 where state laws are necessg
abrogated, the Supremacy Clause appropriately works to suspend trose law
because they are an unavoidable obstacle to the vindication of the federal ris
Largev. Fremont Cnty., 670 F.3d 1133, 1145 (&#0Cir. 2012).

14. As such, a number d&éderalcourts have invalidated-&rge election
systems and approved or given fulfetence taemedial plans that incluggngle
member distrid, even when the adoption of such a plan conflicted with state
See e.g, United States vs. City of Euclid, 580 $upp.2d 584 E.D. Ohio2008);
Tallahassee Branch of NAACP v. Leon County, 827 F.2d 1436, 1487(irl
1987) cert. denied, 488 U.S. 960; United States scé&dlaCounty, 474 F. Supp.
2d 1254 (M.D. Fla 2006%imilarly here this Court is specifically authorized to
order an election system that conflicts with state law inraad&ully remedy the
City’s Voting Rights Act violation.

15. Since the implementation of Pasco’s current election system B

the population of the City of Pasco has grown dramaticBilying that periog
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there has been a substantial increase in the ewwibLatino residentsToday,
Latino residents are estimated to be approximately half of the City’s popu
The Latino population in the City of Pasco is sufficiently numerous
geographically compact to constitute a majority of fttiezen voting ae
population in at least one election district.

16. Latinos in the City of Pasco are a politically unified group that \
cohesively as a blo¢n contests between Latino and Aoatino candidates for tf
City Council, statistical analgs show thatLatino voters consistentlyote for
Latino candidates.

17. The majority of voters in Pasco are whiad have historically
engaged in bloc votinfavorng non-Latino candidates

18. There is a pattern of racially polarized voting in the City of P&styo
Council eledions. The voting patterns aritie presentlynandated alarge genera
election of all City Council candidatesmake it very difficult for the Lating
community to elect candidates of their choiédthough other minority candidat

have been elected to tkity Council, & a result ofacially-polarized bloc voting

no Latino candidate has ever won @posed electioto the Pasco City Coungi

The first Latina to serve on the City Council wassa TorresShewas appointe
to the Council in 1989L.uisa ran for election in1989but was defeated by a nqg

Latino candidate.Theonly otherLatinoto serve on the City Council wassofirst
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appointed to the City Councibaul Martinez. Hesubsequently ran unoppos
which enabled him to retain his seat.

19. In 2015, six Latinos ran for two positions on City Coun€kespite
strong suppordf Latino voters the two Latinas who survived the primary elec
were both defeated in the November 2Q&&eral election

20. While there is no evidence of any discriminatory motive or intef
the nonLatino population in exercising their own rights to vote, such intent i
necessary to a violation of Section 2 of the Voting Rights Abkere is nq
evidence that nehatinos are deliberately conspiring to outvote Latinos.

21. The Latino population in the City of Pasco is sufficiently numer

and geographically compact to constitute a majority of ditieen voting age

population in at least oredection district

22. Under the Senate Factors otthe totality of the circumstancés
analysis there is sufficient evidence of disparities to show inequalit)
opportunities between the white and Latino populations and thaixteeng at
large election system foithe Pasco City Councihas excluded_atinos from
meaningfully participatingn the political process amndiluted their vote such th
Latinos are unable to elect candidates of their choice tGitheCouncil. Thus, he
election systemby which Pasco elects its City Councilmembers, whic
mandated btate statuteand votingtrends in Pasco results in a violatiBaction

2 of the Voting Rights Act.
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23. Itis in the best interest of thhesidentsof the City of Pasco to ent

Into this Partial Consent Decree, thus avoiding protracted, costly, and pote

er

ntially

divisive litigation. Defendant havethe authority to settle litigation in good fajth

for further expenditure of public funds and defense thereof is not likely to be
interest of the public.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the stipulated evidence presented
case and asnemorialized above, IT IS HEREBY, ORDERED, ADJUDGI
AND DECREED that:

1.  ThisCourthas jurisdiction over these actions pursuant toJ&C.

1973 and 28 U.S.C. 1345.

in the

in this

=D

2. Under the Supremacy Clause of Article VI of the Constitution of the

United States this Couhas the power to impose a remedy otherwise contrg
applicablestatestatutesThis Courtalsohas the authority to approwesettiemer
or issue a conserdecreethat abrogatesor modifies state law if doing s
necessary to remedyveolation of Section 2 of the Voting Rights AdPerkins v.

City of Chicago Heights, 47 F.3d 212, 216 (7th Cir. 1995)

3. Wash. Rev. Code5A.12.180 mandatethat Pasco elect its City

Councilmembers in darge electionsDue to voting trendsn Pasce the City’s
currentelection systendilutes the Latino population’s voting powarviolation of

Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act.
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4. In order to remedy the City of Pasco’s @t 2 violation, the City
mustadopt a new election systeimplementation othe new election system w
necessarilyabrogateWashington State law, but must do soonly as much &
necessaryto remedy the Section 2 violatioharge, 670 F.3dat 1145 (]Il n
remedial situations under Section 2 where State lawsesessarilyabrogated, th
supremacyclause appropriately works to suspend those lawause they are :
unavoidable obstacle to the vindication of the Federal right.”)

5. Defendants admit thatlue to voting trend€Pasco’scurrentelection
systemresults in unlawful dilution of the Latino population’s vote in violatior
Section 2 of the Voting Rights AcAs such,a new election system must

imposed Pasco does not have the authority to affirmatively change its el

system because Wash. Rev. Code 35A.12.180 bars such altetdbomver, this

Court has the authority to impose an election system that remedies that violz
6. The Court reviewed the Parties’ stipulatiofifactsas reflected in th

Partial Consent Decreeand finds thathe stipulations arsufficient to suppol

finding thatPPasco’s curren€City Council election system unlawfully dilutes t

Latino population’s vote in violation of Section 2 of théoting Rights Act 42
U.S.C. 8§1973.

7. Except as inconsistent with or specifically altered by the terms of
Partial Consent Decre®r any subsequent orders from this Cpalit statelaws

shall continue to govern elections for the City Council of the City of Pasco.
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8. Defendand, and theirofficers, agents, and successors in offase] al
persons acting in concert with them, are enjoined from administ
implementing, or conducting future elections for the Pasco City Council ung
current atlarge election methodr any other election method thatlates Sectio
2 of the Voting Rights Act

9.  The Court reservgsrisdiction of this matter to determine and imp
the appropriate election system to remedy the current violation of Seabiothé
Voting Rights Act

10. Itis further orderegdthatto provide for effective opportunities for fi
participation in the 2017 munpal election cycle, th@arties shall, in good faif
efforts,meet and confamno later tharBeptember 1,52016to determine whether tl
Parties can agree uponr@medial option for compliance witSection2 of the
Voting Rights Act.If the Parties cannotreach agreementhe Parties shalkach

submittheir proposed remedial districting pkto the Courton or beforeOctobel

15, 2016.The Partiesshall respond tahe proposed remedial plans or before

November 1 2016. The Partiesshall present a replyegarding the propost
remedial plans byNovember 15, 2016 A hearing before this Court on t
proposed remedial redistricting plamsybe set by the Court.

11. No attorney fees or costs are awarded for this liability phase {

caseor work performed by Plaintiff prior to the filing of the Complainbwever
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the Court reserves the award of reasonable attorney fees and costs for the
phase of this case.

ENTERED THIS2" day of Septembegr2016.

Lonny R. Suko

LONNY R. SUKO
SENIORU.S. DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Presented by:

/s/Leland B. Kerr

Leland B. Kerr, WSBA No6059
Ilkerr@kerrlawgroup.net

KERR LAW GROUP

7025 W. Grandridge Blvd., Suite A
Kennewick, Washington 99336
Telephone: (509) 735542
Facsimile: (509) 739506

/s/John A. Safarli

John A. Safarli, WSBA No. 44056
jsafarli@floydringer.com

FLOYD, PFLUEGER & RINGER, P.S.
200 W. Thomas Street, Suite 500
Seattle, Washington 98119
Telephone: (206) 444455

Attorneys for Defendants, City of Pasco et al.

/s/IEmily Chiang

Emily Chiang, WSBA No. 50517
echiang@achwa.org

La Rond Baker, WSBA No. 43610
Ibaker@aclewa.org
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Breanne Schuster, WSBA No. 49993
bschuster@actwa.org

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION
OF WASHINGTON FOUNDATION
901 Fifth Avenue, Suite 630

Seattle, Véshington 98164

Telephone: (206) 622184

/s/IBrendan V. Monahan

Brendan V. Monahan, WSBA No. 22315
bvm@stokeslaw.com

STOKES LAWRENCE VELIKANJE
MOORE & SHORE

120 N. Naches Avenue

Yakima, Washington 98962757

Telephone: (509) 853000

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Bertha Aranda Glatt
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